A Brief History of

THE TRAMWAYS OF BALLARAT

By W H, Jack and K. S Kings

This month merks the 75th. anmiversery of the opening of horse tramways in the

Victorian provineial eity of Ballarat. To commemorate these 75 years of contiruous
horse and electric tremwsy operation, we present this brief history of the system.
The horse tram era is deelt with this month, and will be followed by the electrie era,
which is naturally divided into Company and Comission seetions. So as to keep this
article to a reascnable length, certain desecriptions have been kept to a minimm, and

readers are referred to the accampanying maps and photographs. The rolling stock used

on both the horse and electric tramweys will be covered in dstail in the book "Destination

Baglehawk" which is in course of preparation, and will not be treated likewise here.

Mr’/&S
Baellarat is the third eity of Vietoria, being approximateliy 74)‘!&'@ Melbourne on

the main west-bound reilway line to Adelaide. The population at present is approximstely

03000 peoples Ballovat originally comprised Bast Bellsret and West Ballsrat,which weve
oreated Municipalities in 1857 and 1855 respectivelys The former received the status of
& Tomn in 1872, while the latter became a Oity im 1870, This situstion prevailed wuntil
they amelgansted 4n 1921 to form Greatexr Ballarst. A third loeal government aistrict is
involved in the history of the tremways, namely the Borough of Sebastopol, whienh is
situated a ghort aistance to the scuth west from the centre of Balispat.

In 1885, the Ballarat West City Council decided to ask the State Governuent for sn

Order for the ; Mmo,t,mmium»utMammm-tummuuum,‘

same time elapsed while it was investigated and used %o lay down the procedure for the
futures Approvel was given in September, 1886. The Council then ealled tenders for the
construction and ggerstion of certain tremways on stated conditiens, but leaving some
itens, such as motive power, to the tendevers. The Council favoured s eable tremway,
it wes Tound to be oo costly, and finally granted the concession to My,
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" of Adelaide, to construct a system of horse tremways. % Eompany was flosted in Melbowrne

with  simm capital of 52,000 shares at £2 each, and 17,000 of these were offered to
the public. The routes to be constructed were, brieflyj- (1) Sturt Street, from
Grenville Street,to the Gardens via Sturt Street West. (2) Ripon Street and Wendouree
Parede %o Gardens. (5) Lydierd end MacAvthur Streets. (4) Armstrong end Skipton Streets
to the ecity boundery. (5) Drummond Street South, from Sturt Street to Skipton Street,
mims vhen deemed necessery. The first rall was laid on 18th. Oectober, 1887, snd six

niies of track were subsequently leid in six weeks. The official opening tock place on
21st. December, 1887, when six tramears conveyed 300 guests from the city to the Gardens
for the ususl ceremony snd banquete

The Compeny purchased five acres of land on the north side of Lake Wendourse and
built a depot and stables, 230 feet x 58 feet, of timber frame muit with corrugated sheet

iron sides and roof, together with twenty cottages of four rooms each for drivers and

steblemens The trams were built to the Stevenson (Ameriean) paitern, being constructed
by Duncen end Fraser in Adslaide and assembled in the Depot. Mimem They were four wheel,
double deck, double ended vehicles, with six windows per side in the lower wmimwam deck
saloon, which was fitted with longitudinel seating. Acoess to the top deck was by spiral
steircases from each end platform, where the knife-bDoard seat brought the total seated
capacity to 44 passengers. Iwo later trems were built with seven window ssloons, haimg
poepseiharedmipniengesrondsniog  having & s2loon length of about 14 feet as ageinst 12 feet.
The cars weighed about 53 tons, the colour scheme being yellow. An interesting item is
that the ssloen doors were made by J. M. Jomes Sons, Westtroy, N, L,U 8 A, amd
ecarried a bullders plate to this effect.

public service commenced on Monday, 26th. December, 1887, when three trame were in
service and were well patromised. The service gradually became established ana settled
dowm into a daily routine. For many years, outbound (waﬁ-M) trams used the noxthern



5 h-a;k in Sturt Street while the scuthern rails were used by inbound trams. The terminus
was a% the east end of Sturi Street, at Grenville Street. The trams ran fram 8,00 a.m to
11.0C pems a% inkervals of 15 to 50 minutes. Fares were 5d, for three miles, on a basis
not to exceed 1d. per mile. It would appear ihat the venburs was not as financially
successful as the promoters had hopede The Ballarat West City Couneil complained in
December, 1888 that the Drummond Street South line had been completed for sume months
but that the service had not cormenced, while in May, 1890, the Company requested the
Council to vary their agreement so that the Company's expenditure would be decreased.
The Council refused. When the Drumond Street South serviee, soumenced it was run as a
sluttle between Sturt Street snd Skipton Street with a single deck car. The Cempany
entered into an agreement with the Borough of Sebastopel to extend the South Ballavat
servico to Queen Street, Sebastopol, ané this line wes opemed ws in April, 1203,

Eabt Bellarat.

!ht Im or mt Ballarat va'% alao 1nt¢reatoa. in having & tramway system, and on
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26ths June, 1888, their Council conferred with Mre. mlﬂm. of the Blectrical e

firm of Booth, Ellson and Company, who were then arrenging fo install battery cperated
tramcars at Bendigo. They inspected the wroutes, end iir. Ellson said that he was most
impressed with the prospects and wes sure that the gradients would not prm Aifficuls
for bettery electric trems. The Counell was very pleased, ut history was to prove that
Bellorst Fest weuld heve to wait snother 17 years for its tramways. Although an sgreement
was signed hy the Couneil snd Booth, Fllson and. Company, the Couneil was advised in

June, 1891, thet it wes not legally binding, end decided tc abandon it.
Batters Tren Trial.

A 7181 yun wes mede with a Julien system accumulator car on the Drummond Street
South 1ine on Frigsy, 12th. October, 1888, and was srrenged by Mr. % T Moore who had
purchased the rights for using it in Ballevat. The car appeers e have been a standard
doulile deck horse trem modified to carry the electrical equipment. It had been assembled



g g.n Melbourne, where a demonstration run had been held about a fortnight previously.
The bottom penels of the body sides were removed mkk while the battery trays were
installed underneath the saloon seats. There were eight trays, each of four boxes, on
the car; there being three ceels pér box, thus meking a total of 96 cells on the tram.
Each cell was sbout 6" x 6" x 10", and the total energy carried was sufficient to travel
between 50 end 80 miles. The motor was placed underneath the body, between the wheels
and axlesy and drove the latter through a shaft and spur and chain gearing. It is
possible that the wheel base was lengthened to accamodate the motor and gearing. The
car was run into the eity on Monday, 15th., October, and was tested on stesper hills
than exist on the Drummond Street South line. It appears to have been successful, but
nothing eventuated from it on the Ballarat tramways. Tt is believed that this car was
tried in Adelaide a few weeks later.

Wendouree Depot usually presented a2 busy secene of tramwey 1ife. dd A workshop had
been tuilt behind the Depot, and the trams were meintained in good conditicn. The herses

were cared for by grocms, four of whom were statloned at Wendouree Depct. Hech groom hed
charge of 12 horses, and each pair of harses had not more than two runs pey day, exoept
8t Pusy periods. All horses were spelled in twrn, and reserves were constantly on hand.
Conductors wore undforms, but drivers did net slways adhere strictly, partioculsrly in
winter weather when warm, water-proof outer germents were donned. Crews usually worked
throughout the day with 1j howrs off for lunch and ene hour for dinner, and cne day ofe
PeT month. Pares were initially colleeted by hand end tickets issued, bub Yater bell
registering veceivers were used, there being & slot for passengers to insert their coins
into the small machine. The ticket system was subsequently reintroduced. The Saturday
(shopping) night 1cading on the Sebastopol route was very heavy, and "op" conductors
were used on the upper decks and staircases, while an extra car was also used, The
Sebastopel (formerly South Bailarat) route commenced from the Town Hail; in Armstrong

Btreet, at Sturt Street. A Sunday morning church tram was run from Sebastopol, initially



vis Dramond Street South to the Cathedrsl and later #s vie Armstrong Street, and was
leter joined by a similar service from Gardens. The eaxly Depot -’-ﬁ\s«m Ballarat
services was at Dayling Street; but this was subsequently moved %o Sebastopol. The
former building wes demolished as recontly as dmg last Moy - to make roem for a petrol
statlond The Sebastopol Depot wes destroyed by fire ss early on Sunday morning, 10th.
August, 1900, with the destruction of three trame and thirbeen horses. Only twe herses
were saveds

The horse trem tracks in Skipton Street were used for an wmususl purpese on fiiex 20th.
miasz. The heavy engineering firm, Phoenix Foundry, cerried ocut trials of the
first of three stesm trem motors which they were building for the Bendigo tramways. Two
"lerge tremcers' were sbtached, and passanger::?arﬁea for some two hours. The trisls
vere successful, and the motor duly tramsported to Bendige.

A privete company comstructed Bellarxat's first eleetrie rower stetion in Dana Stroet
in 1865, end enlarged it during the 1020's. The Elecfbric Supply Compan;( of V:letor:l.a Ltd.

purchased the franchise and laid the foundation stone of the present Wendourece power
house on 25rd. August, 1904, This company also purchased the horse tramways 4n 1003

with the intention of converting them to electric traction. This wes dnly carried cut,
and will be deelt with in the next section of this history. The number of horse trams on
) the roster is in doubt. Initially, 15 were dudlt, and 4% hnd been underastood
until recently that 26 (including the single deck eer) wore om hand in 1905, ineluding

& few not in yegular use. Recent research has shown that this figure mey not be securate,
becoause g newspaper report of August, 1902, states that there were 18 trams, while 1t

is possible thet approximetely 50 existed. The former veport sculd refer to cars actually
in use at the time, while the latter figure is arrived at as follows:= 12 were converted
to electrie trems for future use in Ballarat; eight became trailers o the electric trams
in Ballaraty five .,- six were transferred to Bendigo (slso opersted by the Electric
Supply Cos ) as eleetric trailers; three were destroyed in the Sebastopol Depot fire. The
Total is thus 28 or 29 trems. However, these figures have projected us into the next



€

section of this article, and more will be meuntioned about thess points in due ecurse.
A1l that can be said for the moment is that research has not estoblished the mmver of
horse {rams on the roster of the Ballarat Tremway Company.

(Tc be contimnued)



The Electric Supply Compeny of Vietoria Lid., hoving successfully eompleted
negotistions with the City of Ballaret ond Town of Ballarat East 4o install electrie
tremweys In thelr aress, proceeded to put the work in hend. The official opening took
place on 18ths August, 1905, with 2 ceremony &t the new Wendoures power house. The
procession of treme conveyed officisl guests through the oity and onte the Mount
Pleagant and Victoria Street routes. Upon return to the eity, the usual *sumptuous
repest” was parteken at the City Hall. The situation regarding electric trackage at
this period was :~ (1) Vieteris Street, to termimme. (2) Mount Pleasant route, to
corner of Barkly end Main Streets only, with a horse tram shuttle %o the terminus at
Cladstone Street for several weeks, pending completion of the overhesd wiring. @EB
Considereble locsl pressure succeeded in having this line extended %o the present
terminus 2t Cobden Street. (8) Sturt Street end the cireuit M sround the Take. A

horse drewn wegonette was used on the Sturt Street West section for a while pending

eampletion of this worke (4) Drummond Street North and MacArthur Street.(xﬂlydiard Street
North. The Adelaide firm of Duncan and Fraser; which had built the horse trams, received
the contract for the electric tramears. During 190S, they rebuilt six heorse trams and
gix electric trams purchased from Sydney B into the standard type of Ballarat electric
tramcars The horse trams were placed on long steel underframes and their saloons AW“ had
open ends constructed onto them, while the ex-Sydnay care had their end vlatforns
lengthened. The latter csrs included Sydney's three original electric trams (Nes. 1 - s)
and three "0 type (fos. 14 - 18), hemtoeslteteETESeTEEall 7)o ex~horse tramg
were muitbered 1, 4, 4, 10 - 12, sllm Sydney's original eara became Nos. 2, 5 and 7, |
while the "C" class were numbered 3, 8 and 9. The cars were peinted red and eream, with
mumerals in gold leaf and lining in bright blue. “Ballarat Tramways" was paintea on

the rocker panels from about 1912, et which time the car mmbers 8ppeared on the sides
and sprons. Six more horse trams were converted in 1906 and were numbered 15 o

18, A1



these trams were approximately 52 £t. long, and were powered by two 30 h.p. motors.
The ex~-horse trams seated 32 passengers and the ex-Sydney cars 38 passengers. Messrs.
Tuncen and Fraser also completed two eight bench opéen summer cars in 1906. They seated
40 passengers, were powered by two 85 hep. motors, and weighed about 9L tons each.
Although the electric trems served the northern, western ang eastern sections
of Ballarat, services to the south - Sebastopol, from the Town Hall, and the Drummond
Street South shuttle = were still opeveted by horse trems. The latter service was
converted to electric trams in 1907, being operated from the city terminus. The horse |
trams were withdrawn from Skipton Street and Armstrong Street South during 1509, and,
while Skipton Street, between Darling ané Rubiecon Streets, was being converted to
electric trems, pessengers were conveyed between the Drummona Street South electric trams
and the Sebastopol horse trams by horse drswn drags and wagonettes, This section wes

operated by electric trams from 1911, Lengthy negotiations were necessory betwesn the
Company snd the Borough of Sebastopol before agreement was reached to replace the

Temaining horse trams with electric trems, which event tock place on l4th. April, 1913,
thus ending over 25 yesrs of horse traction in Bellarst. Three new electrie trams,
eslled "Sebastopol" cers, were constructed by Duncan and Fraser in 1913, They were semie
closed erossesest ears, Nos. 21 - 23, powered by & two’\a he. pe motors, weighed sbout
104 tons, and. m 31 ft. longs Fixed aeating was provided for 40 passengers, with the
conductor using the centre sisle. In sumner, seats would be inserted soross this aiale,
PEbiemnsssiaemy incrensing the sesting capacity to 50 passengers, snd necesaitating the
eonductor using the footboard. However, after a while, this practiee ceesed, and the
cars ren a8 40 geaters. As mentioned previously, eight ex~horse tyams wers retained ps
treilers to the electric trems in Ballarat. These ears included one of the seven window
saloon trams, the other of which was amongst those sent to Bendigo. Tratler operation
proved advantageous in heavy traffie for many yeears, but finally ceamed in 1997, The

ex~horse Cers were sold, exespt one, which continued in en unusua) role until abeut 1938,
¥ ®



14 was used as & bicycle trailer. The early merning crews naturally signed on at the
Depot, but thelr afternoon relicf men tock cver from the eity offige. Many of the
former men cyclsd o the Depot, and their machines were loaded into the trailer and towed
into tho city behind a passenger tram peer the end of their shifts. The trailer later
returned to the Depot behind another passenger tram loaded with the bicycles of the
afternuon shift men, veady for when they finished work nesr mid-night. This service
was taken over by & mobtor drucke

Grenville Street, at the eastern end of Sturt Street, was the eity terminus. 2
large waiting room was constructed there for passengers, and indicator e¢locks advised
the departure times of trams on the various routes. The waiting room, which wes constructed
on the roadway beyond the end of the central plantation, wes removed in 1933 Yo csaame
the movement of treffic. A pointsboy wes smployed to assist the reversing of trams

shunting here, and to ride Lydiard Street North trams up the hill to chenge the points
LR

for them (and then re-set the switch for the stroight track). The Company introduced
one-msn operstion in 1915, except on the bench cars. About +his time, No. 10 was fitted
vith a windshield st one end, .ana ﬂ: was subsequently decided dummwmmine +that it was
successful end that all cars, except Noss 19 and 20, should be Pitted with this protecti&
at both ends. The originel destination signs wr; an iron -.‘ plate lung over the aprom.
In 1911, four sided revolving boxes worc fitied to the canopies, with bulls eye glass
colours for night use. Coloured enamel route plates, carried on the front upper end of

the cars ss well as on the sides above ths centre windows, were used from 1913 to 1934,
Amimily Revolving linen signs were introduced in 1921, Yeing aseomodated in squarish

upright boxes fitted on the end canopies. The safe-working on single track sections was
governed by hend gtaffs, without tiekets. A water tram, dDuilt by the Brush Company, was

purchased in 1907. It was stored, out of use, at the back of the Depot,about 1918, and
was scrapped in 1935,



Although the general operatim of the traums has been regular and gensrally
uneventful over the years, some poinis are worthy of note, Shortly after the electrie
trems opened, a phenomenal snow stowm, in Augusi, 1506, made it impossible to commence
rumning until noon. Un the Tuesday after Baster, 1917, when the Bureka Pagent was being
staged at the Eureka Stockade, on ths occassion of the Back to ballarat ecelebrations,
all 23 trams were in use. At one stage, 22 trams were sent into the eastern ams section
of Ballarat, and only one tram remained to serve the vest of the system! During the
1920's, the tremways suffered fyom unrestricted competition from privately operated
motor buses. About 1924, the Company actually purchased a small bus from a man who was
runmning it in competition to the Mount Pleasant trams, and subsequently used it on this
mmimblm route and the Viectoria Street line in an effort to counter the competiticn.
State Parlisment eventually legislated to give power to local Councils to license

Privately operated motor buses on specified routes under certain conditions, and this
greatly eased the problem. A number of experiments weve tried over the years at
through-routing, but Grenville Street remained the city terminus for all lines. A new
timetable was introduced in 1924, and yemeined in force for many years. Briefly, these
services were:- Gardens, vie Ripon Street, and Gardens, via Convent (Stwrt Street West),
alternate cers, esch 30 minutes during the morning, 20 minutes during the afternoon and
30 minutes at night. Sebastopol: 20, 24, 20, with an additional serviece to Rubicon
Street in the afternoon to give a 12 minute hesdway. Lydiard Strect North: 20, 12, 20.
Drummond Street North: 30 minutes throughout. Viectoris Street and Mount Pleassant: each
20 minutes throughoute On Sundeys, trems ran during the efterncon snd evening only,
Sebestopol, Vietorie Street, dount Plessant and Lydiard Street North received %¢ minute
services, ané Drummond Street North a tram every 30 minutes. Both the Gardens routes

sve shown as at “"yegular intervals", apperently to allow for varistions to the lake-side
ete.

headweys due to differing weather conditions and various sporting funetions, pienicas,

In 1918, Stste Parlisuent constituted a body to develop electrieity production

in vietorie, ueing the huge deposits of brown cosl in the eastern part of the State.



i The Stete Wleectriolly Coemmiasion of Victoria, as the bedv beeome ¥movn, 21z0 hed the
task of unifying existing sources of electricity and its Qistribution. This involved
the plomt and equinment of the Flectrie Supply Company of Vietoria 144, whe, as
sreviously mentioned, ovsrated the Wendouree power house and surm>lied Ballarat with
its electricity. Initizl negotiations hetween the Company and +he Commization %00k nlace
in 1923, but, as the Company's franchise 214 not expire until 1931, the rate of progress
was limited. Although the Cenmission was an electricity menufacturing and supply body,
it intimated that, if necemmary, 4% would include ¢he tramways in dts purchase of the
Company, even though 4t 214 not consider itself a tramway oparator and, at the &ime,
was not vested with power to operate W trammays. Pusther negotiations took plaoca,
ineluding a conference with the Ballarat City Ceuneil on 25th. Octobher, 1923, ond the
termeg for the purchase of the Compeny (inelnding the tremwaye) by the Commission were

sventuelly egreed upony on 24th. June, 1929, and duly ratified byr Parlisment mm $n
Deceniber, 1920, The purchase dste was set asc lst. July, 1931, but the date of expiry 4‘

of the franchise wes alteved to 350th. June, 1984, During this peried, the Commission

was to supervise the operations of the Compeny, who were +o econtimue their normal
operations. The Comission wes 2180 required to provide funds for any necessary eanital
works, which were $6 be approved by Parliament. Alse, in Decembor, 1920, Parlisment

passed sn Aot ziving the 8. F. C. power to operate tromways, and further detailing

their protection from competitive NN buvs operatora. Tn due course, the aforementioned
progressively came into being. During 1932 and 1935, the 8 E €. conducteq a detedlea
investigation into the condition of the tramways (and a1ss those at Beniigo mna Geelong,
whieh were ineluded in the above mrrangements). Bellerst's electrio tremveys system wen
neerly 50 yeavs old, ond required quite a dcal of attention %o track, overhead end

rolling stodk. The oosts and advantages of rehebiliteting the system, compared with
alternative methods of transport, were yrobed, snd it wes decided that the best

solution
would be to reeonstruct the system $o a reasonable standard, which would _ e




4 alequete street transportation for the next 15 Jeaxs, AL this {ime, the route milesge
was 13413 thers was 1.5 miles of double track, and the single Lrack miieage, including
locps, vae 15,25 miles. Rolling Stock comprised the 1905 to 1913 built ears Wos. 1 o 25.
The Commission estimated thet spproximetely £100,000 would need o be spent on track

and overhosd reconstruction, and that by effecting some resrouting of services and
elimination of routes sume three miles of track would be deleted. Protracied nopotistions
ensued with 4he Ballsrat Clty Couneil on the latter peint, and history has olready
recorded that the Commission was ugeble %o gain their requested alteretions. Tha
roquired funds were made availedle to the S, E. O - mainly by a loen from fhe Netional
Jecovery Fund and a Covernment Grant - end work comienced on the rehsbilitation of

the tramwey system in SR October, 1004, The fipet sectian to be done

was the southern track in Sturt Otreet, from Lyclard Street to Plcazant Street. While

Bridfige Street was belng relaid, men ang eguipnent s were trought from Bendigoe to

speed completion of the Job, and the trams serving the Victorie Styeet and MoGng
Pleasant routes were isolated for several dsys, Mueh of the old snd worn grooved rail
was replaced with 80 1b. *T" rail with a grooved strip bolted on, but the remeindexr
was reconditioned and vemained in use. The special work Was repaived by welding wheve
possible, and anly replaced by new units when necessaxy. Considershie

attention was

olso bestowed upon the overhead, and mueh new trolley wire wes & sirung, On 20th,
August, 1837, an extension of 45,5 cheins was opened to Smimm (e Cemetory gatos

on the Iydiard Ctreet North route, follewing local pressure. This wes the only mejoy
change made in the system after the Sebastopol electrification in 1813, end was officially
opened by tramcer No. 52 (see leter).

Having dealt with the traneition period frow Company to Commdesion, and the

subsequent rehabilitetion of the track and overhesd, we must vevert to the late 1020's
to follow events relsting to the rolling stock, The twe open summey cars,

Hos. 1§ and 20,




“were Pitted with 21F 4rucks in 1929, but this was not suceessful, and they were withdrawn
sbout February, 1930. The Company deecided %o acrep Nos. 10, 15, 18, 19 and 20 later in
the same year, and they weve replaced by purchssing five sinzle truek trams from
Melbournes The "new" 4rama were tyrieal sinele truek open combination cars, having been
clessed "M" on the M. & M. T. B. system. They bscame Ballarst Nos. 24 to 28, and their
ends were later altered +o the loesl design to allow onsemsn operation. In 1931, five
more ears were screpped = Nos. 8, 9, 11, 15 and 14 - and replaced by a further

bateh of Pive similer treme from Melbourne. They were numbered 29, 18, 19, 20 and 186.
Thece ten trems weve peinted red end cream, like the older cars, The green end eream eolour

rcheme, vith ereem roeker renels, wes introduced on Wo. 927 4n March, 1935, while the

Fresent green and cream colours appeerred on No. 168 about April, 1946, The S % G had
Plenned to operste 4he eystem with these ten "new" typms vlus the remaining older cars, !
and mede no provision for additional "new" osrs in their rehabilitation eatimates. {
Hovever, these plans were altered. Noe. 2y 4 and 6 were scrapped in 1832, No. /6 in 1833, /
and Nose § end 7 in 1954, No. 25 ¥as converted to a carborundum serubber and traek
eleening car in 1954 by removing the seats ang substituting a largs water tenk ang

fitting the necessary holders end levers to the truck frame. In 1885, Nos, 1, 3, 124,17,

21 end 22 were withdrawn, and remcved the last of the old cars from the passengerg

rogter. Their replacements were four more cars from Melbourne, whien received Nos. 30 to
43, end four from Geelong (which originsted from Melbourne), and which were nuubered 11 4o
14+ All these cars were of the seme type, and arrivea during 1935 and 1938, A further

combination carg, with streight sill and semi- closed ends, arrived from i

€ elbourne in

1956, and was numbered 322, It was later renumbered 29, and the Tirst No. 29 was renumbered

17. The roster thus numbered 19 trams end, ss Melbourne did not have any more single
truck cers surplus, the 8 = C. purchased three trams fyom Adelside. They were also

single truck open combinetion cers, but with longer saloon - five windows as ageingt

four in the ex-Melbourne esrs. They arrived in December, 1937, ang ¥an, unaltered, in :

Adelaide eolours for scme time. No. 24 was the first air breke tram in Bal] arat, I




By 1638, 21l care, except Hos. 23, 25 end 29, Lnd bLeen converted for cne-man
- gefutlon on the design which still prevedls. Ballarvab $hus entered the wor periocd with "
e fleet of 22 quite good trams, of which only three were two-men carg. They caxried |
heavy loading for several yesrs, and survived the shorieges of meterisis snd maintensnce
remarkably well, The man-power shortege necessilofed the employment of Conductyesses
botwoen 13th, September, 1942 ond Ok July, 1948, & meximum of 25 being on tue job &b }
cne times During the wer, the traus were one-men opsrated before 11.00 sum. end after }
€s00 pams, but, from 8th. April, 1948, Conuctors were provided et ell timese The |
timetable was 20 minutes on 8ll lines, except View Point, and hed been imm intrciuced \‘
with the opening of the Tydierd Street North extension in 1987, A systen of through
routing was alsec introduced, end Grenville Street, gonerelly spesking, was deleted as
& City terminus, éxcept for shovt-working cers. The new arramgement was:~ Victoriea y
Street Lo Cavdens, via Sturt Strest Vest; dount Plessant to Cardens, via Drumond Street
Foxth} Iydlard Street Worth to Sebsstopol; Lydierd Stroet Nerth to Rubloon Strest (later

Grey Street); City to View Point; City (Main Street) to Sturt Strset West. Trolley wheel

operated colour light signsls were insmsmbiessmll introduced on the Bridge Street section
in 1937, and then on the Victoria Street and lount Pleasant routes. The Sebastopol,

Lydiaxd Stxeet North, end both Gerdens routes weve cquippo@ thus in 1838, leaving the
View Point route only worked by hend staif. |

Hoe 22 eollided with an Avmy truck in Drummond Street South on 28th. July, 1644,
and was bedly densgeds Although preliminary work on repeirs had been started, it wes
decided to serep this car when the M & M. . B, mmg offered maximum traction bogie
tramosrs for sele. The first such car arvived on 19th. (otober, 1945, and ran ita trials
three days later. It entered service s week later, being the first double truek tysm in
Ballarate Tt was mumbered 22 - the fowrth trem of this musber in Ballavel - being
yemmibered 57 in 1051 (in owder to consclidate bogie cars from number 34), It was sorapped
in 1955 follewing severe demage in an sceident with a large semi-trailer truck, A second
bogle car arrived o few days later, and was numbered 185, being remumbered 36 in 195%.
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R“Q more bogie cars were purchaged in 1047, Dbeing nuubered 34 and 35. Nozs 23 and 25
feoll into disuse, but were not scerapped until 1251 and 1850 resgectively. Three faothar
bogle trams arrived from Melbourne during 1951, =2nd were numbered 38 {o¢ 40, On @th.
Octobexr, 1552, some cne-man operaticn wae intreduced during sleck periods, Dogle car
Noe 58 wae altered to peymit such rumning, =nd wes cut-shopped in Tebruaxy, 1958
However, the employees Undon rules forbsd one-man operstion of (large) begle Lraws,
and this ear has never been man a3 & one-mon vehicle, When the S T, C. closed its
tramway systen at Geelong early in 1956, three begle trems (originelly ex Melbourns)
were transferred to Bellaral, and entered service as Nos. 41 to 43. These curs enabled
cingle truckers Nos. 16 and 24 to be scrapped in 1868 and 1937 pespectively. Julte s
quantity of spare perts end mebevials were slso recelved frum Geelong, inclulling some
good second hand reils Same of the lalbier wos used to re-rail the single track in Bridge

Street, early in Februery, 1957, the work being carried out efter midnight.

Muring the late 1880's the rolling stock consisted ofAu single truok trams and
nine bogie carse As Ballaret hed a sufficiency of the former, 2nd the S T. C.'s other
system st Benfigo wes short of this type, it wes decided to trensfer two single truck
cars from Bellarat to Bendigo end replace them with one bogie cer from Bendigo. This
movement took place early in October; 1960, when Noe. 19 and 25 left Wendouree Depot
end Bendigo's Bo. 1 arriveds The latter car has had a remorkeable history. Tt entered
service with the Hewthorn Tremways Trust in April, 1916, probebly as No. 15. Tt wes
teken over by the M. & ¥. T, B, in 1919, end subsequently mumbered 119. It wag next
gold to the 8. Y. C. 2néd beceme Geelong No. 35 in January, 1048, When this system closed,
it wes transferred to Pendigo in March, 1956, end mumbered 1 - the only bogie tramcar
in fustralia to cerry this numerals With its transfer to Bellaret, it hae thus worked
over five systems under three owners. It cerries Ballerat No. 37. The ear roster at

Balierst is thmus 15 single truck and 10 bogie trams, plus one tysock cleaning car.



The S B C'se travcars hsve been vulnersble to being struck by moterists at
night for meny yeers now, probebly due to poor street 1ighting in 4he Provineisl eities
and the use of much zingle track. Four tail-lights, one in esch ¢corner of e¢ach apron,
wore fitted in 1952, and opereted in conjunction with the heallight at the othor end
of the cere White reflective tape was fitted,in 1952, to the aprons and bugpers, as an
edditicnsl means of identification. Fowever, accidents continued to happen at 4ntervels,
50 1Y wes decllded to add to the trams’ “defencea"WczanoPy woe fitted ot the top of
each aprom, Qrilled with aix holes, and fitted with four vhite and +wo red 1ight g1cbes.
This eenopy, the bumper and the fascia strip shout the destinction box weve painted
with stripes. The four white globes cast = very good illuninstien Seown onto +he apron
ond shine straight out through the holes » tlms heavily reinforeing the headlisht., The
vesr of the tram shows the two red lightefrom the canopy (thus eompleting the circuig
with the frent four lights) as well 2s the two abovementicned spron %tnil~lighte., fdd ALY
cars were thue fitted in 1061, and, ot last, the sccident rate hes 8ropped to almost nill

Several,minor smeniments have been madc to the trac)k: leyout over the years, A1l
the original loops have been relocated and scme additionszl ones instolled, while »
pexking loop was installed om the southern track et the esstern ond of Sturt Strest,
probably during the reconstruction period in the middle 1930%z. The toop on the Viow
Point 1ins, near the Power House, was broken 1n 1833 and a switeh used st the hesd of
the new outaide rosd et the Depet, which was completed in Mareh,1954. This yosa 4s
called Wo. O woad, The parking loep at the Gardems (a short distance south of the

cardens passing loop), had its polnts removed in 1980. Its switohes were normelly sed

for the straight rcad, and wers not sprung as in the case of passing loops,
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rief History of
THE TRAMWAYS UF BALLARAT
(Continued)
By W%. H. Jack and K. 8. Kings.
i Lest wonith we marked the 7Ltk amniversary of the opening of aorse tramways
in Ballarat with the first portion of this article, which dealt with the horse traction
era. We continue now into the period of electrification and operation by the Electrie
Supply Company of Victoria Ltds, and then the purchase and operation, up to the present
time, by the State Electricity Commission of Victorie.
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4sem their City for a long while yet.

The foregoing article has been based on records snd deta in the collection of lr.
¥. H Jeck, supplemented by material from Mr. K. S. Kings' files. References used
include the 8 ¥, C. Annusl Reports, Bellarat "Courier", Ballarat "Star", Ballarat
City Couneil Annmual Reports,"Destination City" and "Destination Faglehawk" (which is
8t111 in course of preparation by Messrs. D J. Richardson and K. S. Kings). The authors
wigh to record their thenks to Messrs. C. R, G, Field and K. McCerthy for their
essistance, and to past and present 8. E. C. Tramway employees: Messrs. D. Irvin, L. J.
Denmeed, W, J. Lyons, and the lste A. V. Mawby and late . Hodgson.



Yriday, ‘and. ® Fe‘bumry, 1.402, cast a dark shadow over Ballarat, as the S E. Ce
ermounced that it would peti’cion State Perliament to close its tramways at Ballarat and
Bendigo. Local reaction was adverse, and Oprpoaition steadily grew and became organised.
Trotest meetings and aeputatiorm have been organiaed but. to d.ate, the Government has
not commitied ENEERE itsclf either way, and the S H. €, has not tabled its formal
applicstion in Perxliesment. The surface picture is calm, ana politieal observers feel
that no action will be taken before MEE May, 1964 -~ whon the next & State elections
ere due to be heldl

Meanwhile, the trems ecntinue to run and serve the people of Ballarat. liaintenance
of rolling stoek and track continues; trams are still being owerhauled and painted; ang
vieitors marvel at ithe system as a whole. Indeed, some recent travellers fraom abroard
heve found it aiffieult to believe the remarkebly high standard of eppearance of all trams

'\ in the fleet, and their praise for the Depot staff has been considersble. The tramways of
\hﬂt ere seventy five years old, end it is to be hoped that they will be apared to
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